Minister’s
Minister’sMessage
Message
Striving for excellence in healthcare is critical for
Jamaica’s development, even in the face of the
formidable challenges we face in providing primary
and secondary healthcare in a tough economy. In this
regard the National Health Fund, which was established
to assist with financing healthcare in Jamaica has
to ensure that the resources allocated from the
designated schedule of taxes and contributions from
the National Insurance Scheme, are effectively spent
to help us meet the target of good quality healthcare
for our residents.
During the financial year 2012-2013, the NHF once
again demonstrated that it takes its mission for
healthcare seriously, as evidenced by the progress
made in various programmes for institutional benefits,
individual benefits, pharmaceutical care and health
education.

Hon. Dr. Fenton Ferguson, CD, DDS, MP

This year over fifty percent of the Institutional benefits
grants were for continued improvement in infrastructure
of health facilities. This included funding for the establishment of four Centres of Excellence in
Primary Care, one in each Regional Health Authority. These Centres of Excellence provide an
expanded range of services, which will improve accessible and equitable care, while reducing
the pressure on hospitals.
The provision of drug therapy to improve patients’ quality of life is a major function of the NHF. At
the end of the financial year it achieved a seventeen percent (17%) increase in the distribution/
sale of drugs to the public health sector during the year. This is testament to an organization
which responds to the changes needed to ensure better people and patient centered care.
Enrollment in 2012 – 2013 for the NHF and Jamaica Drug for the Elderly Programme (JADEP)
health cards also increased and reached over 570,000 persons. This is a critical mass of the
persons living with chronic diseases in Jamaica and we must build on this fact to reverse the
negative impact of these diseases at the individual and national level.
This statutory body has constantly demonstrated that it is one of the most efficient public sector
organizations in Jamaica. NHF’s outstanding use of management information technology
ensures efficiency of operations for the successful administration of Pharmaceutical Services
and the Individual Benefits Programme.
I thank the hard working Board of Directors, management and staff for their dedicated and
insightful service. An anchor for the public health sector, NHF achievements demonstrate
excellence in healthcare management. Yet I encourage all to lift the service offered by the NHF
even higher in the next year as we aim for continuous improvement in the delivery of healthcare
in Jamaica.
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Statement
Statementof
of Values
Values

At the NHF,
We are committed to the highest
standards
of honesty, integrity and quality.
In discharging our responsibilities
we will be guided by the highest moral
and ethical standards
and will at all times demonstrate the
highest level of professionalism.
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Chairman’s
Chairman’s Statement
Statement
Continuous improvement has been the hallmark of the
National Health Fund and this year was no different.
The organization examined its processes, procedures
and structures and sought creative and effective
strategies to attain excellence in the management of
its resources and delivery of services. As a result, the
NHF had another great year of achievements.

Sterling B. Soares, JP

Electronic communication and connectivity is
impacting the trajectory of advancement in
healthcare management and this year the NHF once
again expanded its use of information technology.
Sending SMS messages to beneficiaries is now being
used to communicate condition updates, issues
related to the application forms and drug advance
notifications. This is having a further positive impact on
our customer service.

Improvement in the supply chain for the
Pharmaceutical Division was also accomplished with
an electronic order log and gate pass system and the increased adoption of lot and serial
number tracking. All Drug Serv locations are now running the same Pharmacy Management
System, which has led to better efficiencies in prescription processing, management and
subsequent reporting.
The NHF launched a new website and corporate intranet portals which boast an enhanced and
interactive face to the public and employees with more frequent updates and a wider range of
information being available.
An audit was conducted of all the projects under Institutional Benefits to determine critical issues
affecting project execution, following which, twenty-two (22) incomplete projects from previous
years were completed or brought to closure. Out of this exercise four (4) new projects were
approved out of balances from completed and or dormant projects. A total of forty-three (43)
new projects were approved during the year at an approximate value of $795.9m. Twentysix (26) projects were approved for the MOH and the Regional Authorities. Non- Government
Organizations and other Government Agencies had eighteen (18) projects approved.
There was a major focus on upgrading of infrastructure for Drug Serv and hospital pharmacies
to meet the design requirements of the Pharmacy Council of Jamaica. This effort will continue
as the NHF is committed to excellence in all areas of operation.
The NHF Pharmaceutical Division continued to perform admirably throughout the year, procuring
high quality products at the most competitive prices through the international competitive
tender process. Approximately $3.5b in drugs and other supplies were sold/distributed to the
public health system, utilizing the updated electronic system to obtain a near perfect delivery
schedule (98%). Drugs for the treatment of chronic diseases accounted for the largest share
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of goods distributed, with drugs for the cardiovascular, nervous and endocrine systems and
malignant diseases, accounting for over fifty percent of sales.
The chronic disease epidemic is also reflected in the enrolment for NHF Individual Benefits. At the
end of the year enrolment reached a total to 573,563 beneficiaries with 909,438 cases of illnesses
on record. The illnesses with the highest prevalence were Hypertension representing 25% of the
cases, High Cholesterol representing 13% of the cases and Diabetes representing 13% of the
cases. These three conditions account for 51% of all cases.
A re-registration exercise for pharmacy providers, was started during the year, as a result of
a change in our provider registration requirements. At year end about 50% of providers have
satisfied the requirements and are currently compliant, and most of the remainder are in
various stages of the application process. However, approximately 24 had their provider status
suspended for failure to respond to the call for re-registration.
The NHF Board of Directors is committed to the formulation and implementation of strategic
objectives for the NHF that will ensure the organization plays a significant role in national
development. Along with management and staff we will continue to make creative strides
towards successfully fulfilling our Mission.
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CEO’s
CEO’s Report
Report
The year 2012/2013 was another productive
year for the National Health Fund.
The staff continued to give superb service,
ensuring
operational
procedures
are
maintained and service expanded in order to
meet the growing needs and expectations of
our beneficiaries.
We are pleased to have provided improvements
in benefits by adding new active ingredients
and the reintroduction of the drug Amlodipine
to our drug benefits list.

Everton W. Anderson, JP

We worked closely with the Ministry of Health
through our Institutional Benefits Programme
and financed several projects for infrastructure
upgrade and the purchase of equipment, which
were all critical to the delivery of healthcare for
the people of Jamaica.

INDIVIDUAL BENEFITS
Enrolment

During the period April 1, 2012 to March 31, 2013, a total of 38,230 beneficiaries were enroled into
the Individual Benefits Programme, bringing the total to 573,563 beneficiaries. Average monthly
enrolment was 2,400 beneficiaries for the NHF card, and 786 for JADEP. NHFCard enrolment was
relatively flat during the year whereas JADEP enrolment showed signs of a slight decline.

NHFCARD ENROLMENT BY CASES
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As at the end of the year, there were 909,438 cases of illnesses on record. The illnesses with
the highest prevalence were Hypertension representing 25% of the cases, High Cholesterol
representing 13% and Diabetes representing 13%. These three conditions account for 51% of all
cases.

Claims

A total of 3.2 million prescriptions were filled for NHFCard benefits during the year, for a total
subsidy payout of approximately $3b. The average monthly number of prescriptions filled was
273,685 for an approximate monthly subsidy of $253m. For JADEP 488,689 prescriptions were
filled for the year (approximately 40 thousand per month).

NHFCARD CLAIMS
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An analysis of JADEP activity revealed an average 13% of all JADEP transactions were rejected.
Eighty percent (80%) of total rejections were due to patients refilling too soon, exceeding plan
limits or provider not claiming.

INDIVIDUAL BENEFITS CLAIMS
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A similar analysis for the NHFCard showed that on average 13% of all transactions submitted
for adjudication were rejected. These three categories accounted for eighty percent (80%) of
rejections:- “Drug Diagnosis Mismatch”, “Refill Too Soon”, and “Plan Limitations Exceeded”.
By the end of the financial year approximately $3b were paid out in subsidies, representing 98%
of the budgeted expenditure.

Subsidy
NHFCARD SUBSIDY/PATIENT COST
Vascular Disease 51%
RFH Disease 53%
Psychosis 66%
Prostate Cancer 78%
Major Depression 55%
Ischaemic Heart Disease
49%
Hypertension 47%
High Cholesterol 69%
Glaucoma 51%
Epilepsy 42%
Diabetes 58%
Benign Prostatic
Hyperplasia 63%
Breast Cancer 68%
Asthma 55%
Arthritis 49%
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Provider Network

At the end of the year, the NHFCard was accepted at 406 private pharmacies and 245 were
accepting the JADEP card. In addition, there were 77 Providers of the HbA1c test.
We began the Provider re-registration exercise in 2012. To date approximately 50% of Providers
have satisfied the requirements and are currently compliant, while the remainder are at various
stages of the application process.

Help Desk Activity

During the year, 19,629 calls were handled by all NHF Help Desks, and 49,870 walk-in visitors were
processed. This means on average, help desk staff responded to 1,636 calls and processed
4,156 walk in customers monthly.
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Quality Management System (QMS)

Four Internal audits, one Surveillance, one Re-certification and one Process Review were
conducted. In addition there were two Management Reviews during the period.
The NHF ISO Certificate was not renewed at the last NCBJ Re-certification Audit for one major nonconformance of not conducting a Customer Satisfaction Survey since 2010. Arrangements were
made to complete the survey to satisfy the conditions imposed by the ISO Registrar.

Provider Audit

A total of 100 audits or 57% of the number of audits scheduled were completed during the year.
This shortfall was due to inadequate human resources.

Strategic Plan

A three-year Strategic Plan was prepared for the Organization. This strategic planning exercise
was achieved using a Balanced Scorecard approach where a review of the NHF Mission
Statement and Statement of Values was done. In addition to this, the formulation of Strategic
Objectives and resultant Operating Plans for the year April 2013-March 2014, were prepared.
Balanced Scorecards were also prepared at a Divisional/Departmental level, to facilitate
effective monitoring and reporting of the Action Plans against their targets.

INSTITUTIONAL BENEFITS
Institutional Benefits provide grant funding/assistance to private and public sector organizations
for projects and covers all areas of healthcare delivery. Organizations seeking assistance from
the NHF Institutional Benefits program must submit a project request to NHF outlining the project
objectives, cost, duration and expected outcomes.
Institutional Benefits are provided through two programmes, the Health Promotion and Protection
Fund and the Health Support Fund.

Health Promotion and Protection Fund

This fund provides financial grants for public and private sector projects in educational and
primary care activities for health promotion and illness prevention. Activities include health
education, programmes to improve lifestyle behavior, research programmes directed at chronic
diseases, immunization, illness prevention, screening and testing for medical conditions.

Health Support Fund

This fund provides financial grants for infrastructure and other development projects in the public
sector in support of the government’s national healthcare policy.

Project Approval By Grantee

During the year, a total of forty-three (43) projects were approved at an approximate value
of $795.9M. Twenty-six (26) projects were approved for the Ministry of Health (MOH) and the
Regional Authorities at an approximate value of $632.9M. Non Government Organizations and
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Other Government Agencies had seventeen (17) projects approved at an approximate value
of $163.0m. Four (4) projects valuing a total of $49.8m were approved out of balances from
completed and or dormant projects.

APPROVAL BY GRANTEE (Millions)

Ministry of Health
South East Regional Health Authority
North East Regional Health Authority
Southern Regional Health Authority
Western Regional Health Authority
Northern Regional Health Authority
Other Government Agencies

Project Approval by Type

All the projects that were approved during the financial year fell under seven (7) categories.
The categories were: Infrastructure, Health Promotion and Protection, Equipment, Training,
Research, Transportation and Other. Fifty One percent (51%) of approved funds were allocated
to Infrastructure with seventeen(17) projects, followed by Equipment with eight (8) projects,
eleven (11) for Health Promotion and Protection, two (2) for Research, four (4) for Training, one
(1) for Transportation and Other.

APPROVAL BY PROJECT TYPE (Millions)
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PHARMACEUTICAL DIVISION
Purchasing

The NHF continued the procurement, warehousing and distribution of pharmaceuticals and
medical supplies at the most competitive prices. The statistics for purchases in 2012/2013,
compared with 2011/2012, are outlined in Table 1. 802 purchase orders were processed, a
5.87% decrease when compared with 2011/2012.

TABLE 1: PURCHASING STATISTICS 2012/2013

Number of Purchase
Orders
Value of Purchase
Orders (J$M)
Value of Goods
Received (J$M)

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Total
2012/2013

Total
2011/2012

%
Increase /
(Decrease)

258

197

169

178

802

852

-6%

2,006

730

549

427

3,712

2,802

32%

809

817

745

720

3,092

2,530

22%

Service Level

During the financial year, the average service level for critical items was 87%. This was below the
90% target, which translates to a 1% decrease when compared with the service level achieved
for critical items for 2011/2012. Critical items are defined as life-saving items that are usually
difficult to source locally. Details for the four quarters, for all critical item categories, are provided
in Table 2. The average service levels ranged from a low of 62% for anti-cancer drugs in Quarter
3 to a high of 100% for x-ray chemicals in Quarters 2 and 4. The inability to achieve some of the
service level targets was attributed to (i) the lack of demand forecasts from the health institutions
and (ii) the unavailability or discontinuation of certain critical items by the manufacturers.

TABLE 2: % SERVICE LEVEL - Drugs For Critical Illnesses
(By Quarter 2012/2013)
PRODUCT CATEGORIES
Critical Items
Anti-Infectives
Anti-Cancer
I.V. Fluids
General Pharmaceuticals
Medical Sundries
X-Ray Chemicals
X-Ray Films
Average

12

Q1
%

Q2
%

Q3
%

Q4
%

79
71
89
86
90
99
94
87

75
66
90
85
92
100
100
87

82
62
91
87
94
99
87
86

80
75
91
86
91
100
86
87
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Average
%
79
68
90
86
92
100
92
87

The average service levels for pharmaceuticals used to treat priority chronic illnesses, as outlined
in the Ministry of Health’s Corporate Plan, are shown in Table 3. These conditions are hypertension,
diabetes, asthma, mental illness and cardiac disease. Our target was to maintain a minimum
average service level of 90%. The average service level for the four quarters was 85%; the same
as achieved for 2011/2012. The average service level for 2012/2013 ranged from a low of 67% in
Quarter 2 for anti-psychotic agents to a high of 99% for anti-diabetic agents in Quarter 1. The
average service level for anti-psychotics was 77%, below the target of 90%. This compares with
an average service level of 74% for 2011/2012. The shortfall in service levels were due to the
same reasons stated for critical items.

TABLE 3: %SERVICE LEVEL - Drugs for Chronic Illnesses
(By Quarter 2012/2013)

Chronic Diseases
Anti-Diabetic Agents
Anti-Asthmatic Agents
Cardiac Drugs
Anti-Psychotics Agents
Anti-Hypertensive Drugs
Average

Q1
%

Q2
%

Q3
%

Q4
%

Average
%

99
88
88
73
90
88

91
89
73
67
85
81

91
92
94
82
77
87

77
89
89
85
85
85

90
90
86
77
84
85

Customs Clearance

A total of 503 shipments were cleared by our Import Department during the year. The average
turnaround time for the clearance of non-perishable consignments was under 4 days, in keeping
with the 7-day target. Perishable consignments were cleared within an average of 1 day.

WAREHOUSE OPERATIONS
Receivals

National Health Fund Pharmaceutical Division received a total of 1,452 consignments during
2012/2013. Of these, 571 or (39.3%) were received from overseas suppliers and the remaining
881 (60.7%) from local suppliers. The total number of consignments received during 2012/13
reflects a 14.1% increase when compared with last year’s figure of 1,273 consignments.
Local consignments were 310 shipments (21.4%) more than those from overseas. There was
an increase of 27.7% in overseas consignments received during 2012/2013 compared with
2011/2012. 120 containers were received this year compared with 94 the previous year. The
company’s target time for offloading of containers is 48 hours. Offloading times ranged from 20
minutes to approximately 20 hours resulting in an average of approximately 3 hours - well below
target.
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Inventory

During the 2012/2013 financial year targets were achieved for inventory turnover rate and
inventory spoilage. Four of the Organization’s distribution operations achieved a rate of 4.71%
for inventory turnover and 0.37% average inventory spoilage.
Another objective was to achieve less than 5% ad hoc count discrepancies and no greater
than 2% variance from the annual count. The Internal Audit Department (IAD) facilitated early
detection of discrepancies in inventory by performing consistent ad hoc checks of inventory in
the organization’s warehouse. All major categories of items stocked were counted during the
year, with a total count of 1,865 items.
The level of stock discrepancies, from ad hoc counts by the IAD, was on average 9.8%. The
discrepancies for the most part were due to picking/packing errors and system related issues.
The relevant officers will continue to strengthen the internal controls to ensure a reduction in
inventory discrepancies.
The printing of lot tracking and expiry date of inventory on customers’ invoices was implemented
during 2012/13.

Delivery service
The Division aims to deliver 100% of public sector customers’ monthly orders. Each customer is
scheduled to receive two deliveries per month, with the exception of the Drug Serv pharmacies
located in Kingston, where weekly deliveries are made. Several customers collected portions
of their monthly orders (26.7%) resulting in an average of 73.3% delivery rate for 2012/2013. This
reflects a 7.3% decrease when compared with last year 79.1%.
There was a 98% adherence to the delivery schedule. The service of haulage contractors was
utilized to facilitate the increased number of inventory ordered by the health facilities and to
respond to emergency or non-scheduled deliveries. An average of 101 emergency orders was
processed monthly, during the period 2012/2013.

Support services
Vaccines
The National Health Fund provides effective support for the Ministry of Health’s Immunization
Programme by storing and distributing vaccines. A total of 227 requisitions were processed
during the year. This represents a 5.02% decrease when compared with last year’s total of 239.
The turnaround time for processing orders ranged from 10 minutes to 30 minutes with an average
processing time of 15 minutes.
Spoilage of vaccines was averted by the immediate intervention of relevant personnel. Cold
room temperature ranged from 2 to 13 degrees Celsius with an average of 4.8 degrees Celsius.
Maintenance of appropriate storage conditions for vaccines was achieved through the
implementation and execution of several operational activities, which included:
• Twice daily monitoring of cold room and freezer temperatures.
• Emergency contact and response system with refrigeration personnel.
• Emergency contact and response system with maintenance and generator personnel.
• Preventative maintenance of generator and cold room.
• Maintenance of temperature sensitive alarm system for cold room.
• Availability of NHF personnel to receive and properly store vaccines upon arrival.
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National HIV/STI Program
The National Health Fund continued to procure, warehouse and distribute anti-retrovirals, infant
formula and laboratory reagents for sexually transmitted infections, through the World Bank and
Global Fund projects to scale up the Ministry of Health’s HIV/ STI prevention, treatment and
policy efforts in Jamaica.

Sales

Sales of pharmaceuticals and medical sundries for this financial year was $3.45b. This represented
an increase of 17% over the 2011/2012 sales of $2.95b. The public sector hospitals and health
departments accounted for 97.7% sales from its distribution operations. The highest level of sales
was to the Health Departments in the South East Regional Health Authority, which accounted
for approximately 50% of the total sales to the four regions.

RETAIL DIVISION - DRUG SERV
The year 2012/2013 began with relatively fair sales performances at all the Drug Serv locations.
The performance this year was limited due to several power outages, malfunctioning of
equipment and the installation of pharmacy software at eight of the ten Drug Serv locations.
The average combined sales among the ten Drug Serv Pharmacies increased by 1% compared
to last year. There was also an equivalent growth of 1% in the prescription numbers for the same
period. This was a fair performance for the entity amid the challenges that impacted on the
general output of the dedicated staff. The increase of windows for processing and improved
infrastructure will help to contribute to lowering waiting time in the near future. During the last
quarter of this year, we began the exercise of measuring waiting time at all locations with the
objective to identify existing bottlenecks and improve processes, which will enhance customer
service and satisfaction.
The Pharmacy Assistants and Technicians at the Drug Serv locations, were given refresher training
in the use of the pharmacy software.

YEAR TO DATE PRESCRIPTION DATA - DRUG SERV PHARMACIES
The total prescriptions processed for April 2012
to March 2013 was 822,073. On average, 68,506
prescriptions were processed per month. Union
Square, Mandeville, May Pen, and Diabetes
Centre contributed to 59% of total year-todate prescriptions processed. Drug Serv Union
Square contributed to 20% of total prescriptions
processed.
Among the hospital pharmacies, Drug
Serv Mandeville accounted for the highest
prescription volume year-to- date, followed by
May Pen. The total sales generated were over
$1.2b.
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PUBLIC INFORMATION
Health Promotion & Prevention Programmes

Several changes to the Public Information Department were proposed and were approved by
the Board of Management. In addition to re-structuring, a name change has also been proposed
for the department. The proposed name is Health Promotion and Wellness Department.
National Physical Activity Week was observed during the week of April 1 to April 7. The week
commenced with the launch of the NHF Work It Out Challenge 2012 for Workplaces followed
by a major health fair in St. Mary where members of the community were offered free screening
tests and participated in the many physical activities throughout the day. Through collaboration
with the Ministry of Health, Mental Health Counseling, Immunizations and HIV testing and Nutrition
Counseling were also offered.
The successful staging of the NHF Aerobic Fitness Marathon in Emancipation Park was another
highlight during the week where participants were invited to undertake a variety of exercise
routines under the direction of Certified Aerobic Fitness Instructors. Trophies were awarded to
the top 3 individuals.
We continued to build relationships with our Partners by participating in major Health Conferences.
These included the University Diabetes Outreach Programme (UDOP) Medical Association of
Jamaica (MAJ) and Pharmaceutical Society of Jamaica (PSJ) Conferences where Physicians,
Nurse Practitioners, Nurses and Pharmacists build bonds with the NHF in addition to receiving
benefits updates and other information.
The NHF was well represented at the Jamaica Cancer Society’s “Relay For Life” fundraiser held
at the Police Officers Club in July 2012. One Hundred and Fourteen (114) staff members walked
relay-style around the track throughout the night in support of increasing awareness in the fight
against cancer. Several other teams from corporate offices, civic groups and churches also
showed support by participating at this annual event.
We continued our Health Promotion campaign through collaboration with the Ministry of Health
to host a successful Caribbean Wellness Day Expo at the St. William Grant Park in Downtown
Kingston. The observance of Caribbean Wellness Day was one of the decisions taken when
the Caribbean Community (CARICOM) Heads of Government, deeply concerned about the
physical, economic and social burdens caused by lifestyle-related diseases such as diabetes,
hypertension, stroke, heart disease, obesity and cancer, met in Port-of-Spain, Trinidad and
Tobago on 15 September 2007 to design a plan of action to stop the epidemic of chronic NonCommunicable Diseases (NCDs).
This event which took place on September 8, 2012 was well supported by members of the
community who took advantage of the free health checks, health activities and high energy
entertainment package which targeted all age groups.

NHF Hula Hoopers 2012

The objective of the NHF Hula Hoopers Competition is to introduce and encourage our children
to become more physically active. This year’s competition had 84 students performing in the
Elimination Rounds with 23 making it to the final in November 2012. Top students came from St.
Thomas, Manchester and St. James from the two categories 3-6 and 7-12 years.
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NHF Work It Out Challenge 2012

The NHF Work-It-Out Challenge for Workplaces is a Body Mass Index (BMI) weight loss team
competition that encourages individuals to change their lifestyle to achieve a healthier mind
and body. During the six month period, Healthy Lifestyle Seminars and Aerobic Work-Out Sessions
were hosted by the NHF with the aim of educating the participants on the benefits of a healthy
diet, regular physical activity and effective stress management.
The NHF Work-It-Out Challenge 2012, had a total of 96 corporate entities each having one
team consisting of five persons. This competition culminated with an Awards Ceremony held in
November 2012, where the top three Companies and Individuals were awarded with trophies
and prizes. The average weight lost was 9.33 pounds per person.

Health Screening Programme

In an effort to promote the prevention of chronic diseases and a healthy lifestyle, we continued
our community outreach with Community Health Days hosted throughout the year in various
communities across the island. Screening tests for common chronic illnesses were conducted
and referrals and counseling services were made available for persons with abnormal results.
The High Schools Wellness Programme which commenced in 2008, remains active and students
from all ages are selected based on their health status and family history. The screening tests
offered are: Body Mass Index, Blood Sugar, Cholesterol, ECG and Haemoglobin. Counselling
is offered by the Agency on location and referrals are made for abnormal ECG results. Further
follow up and monitoring is done by the School Nurse.
The NHF participated in several health fairs which were organized by community groups. The
NHF team assisted persons to complete application forms for the NHFCard and JADEP benefits.
Brochures on the illnesses covered by the NHFCard were made available to participants. A total
of 29,520 screening tests were done for Blood Pressure, Blood Sugar, Blood Cholesterol, Blood
Circulation, Haemoglobin, HBA1C, ECG, Vision and Footcare for Diabetics during this year.
Salt Awareness Week was observed during the week of March 10-16, 2013. Messages
highlighting the harmful effects of too much sodium in the Jamaican diet were enforced through
advertisements placed in major local newspapers and radio stations. The NHF website was also
updated to highlight salt reduction messages which also included our “Salty Truth” presentation
produced by the NHF. The campaign also included appearances on a local television morning
programme and radio stations highlighting how to read labels and its importance in making low
sodium choices.
Throughout the year, the NHF sponsored the “Everyone’s A Winner” 5K series. These amongst
others namely the Grace Kennedy Education Run 2012 and Sigma Corporate Run 2013 were
well supported by staff, along with NHF’s Annual Portmore 5K Race held in May 2012.

Publications

We continue to educate the public about the NHFCard and JADEP benefits and about the 15
common chronic illnesses covered through the publication of brochures, the Individual Benefits
Booklet, Guidelines for Health Professionals and posters. In addition to the 15 illnesses we also
have produced information brochures on Alzheimer’s, Chronic Kidney Disease and Sickle Cell
Disease. These are all made available at community outreach events, health centres, hospitals,
conferences and pharmacies across the island.
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M0bile Screening Unit

Approval was granted by the Board of Management for the procurement of a mobile
screening unit to improve and increase our screening efforts. With the procurement of this
unit, screening tests currently done at our community outreach events by NGOs will soon be
done by medical staff employed to the NHF. Currently, the NHF conducts over 50 community
interventions annually. It is anticipated that with the acquisition of the Mobile Medical Unit, the
community interventions will be increased by one hundred percent and should realize significant
savings. Statistical reports generated from these screening tests will be evaluated, resulting in
more detailed analysis of the health status of the population and thereby allowing the MOH to
incorporate intervention programmes as needed.

Publicity

The NHF continued the drive to install directional Hospital Signs throughout the island at most
major hospitals.
NHF Community Health Days continue to be promoted each week via public service
announcements and flyers distributed throughout the communities. Social Media has also been
utilized for the promotion of these events and to convey health messages through Facebook
and Twitter. Our website is updated daily to keep visitors to the site abreast of the scheduled
activities.
The Department acquired a camera and video recorder for the purpose of recording NHF
events. Training sessions on the proper use of this equipment was conducted by professionals
from the University of Technology (UTECH) for several staff members.
An alternative approach to printed material is utilizing appropriate visuals, hence televisions with
DVD players were purchased and are to be placed in Health Centres and Drug Serv Pharmacies
for the purpose of educating the public through five minute infomercials on all facets of the NHF
along with chronic disease prevention and control. These infomercials will also be aired on the
NHF Youtube channel, the NHF website and JIS TV.

Advertising

The contract with Prism Communications Ltd. ended on January 18, 2013. The Public Information
Department has now assumed the duties previously carried out by the Agency. We continue to
place health tips in the print and electronic media. Outdoor Billboards and Electronic Boards
are used to convey messages to encourage physical activity.

INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY
The year proved to be one of many challenges and successes for the NHF and its technology
framework. The diverse operations and the pending needs challenged the ICT Team to plan for
and meet the expectations in the respective areas.
The NHF launched a new website and corporate intranet portals which boasts an improved
and interactive face to the public and employees with more frequent updates and a wider
range of information being available to all. The new portals also have improved administrative
capabilities allowing the NHF to be more timely in providing information to its stakeholders.
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The ability to send SMS messages to beneficiaries in the application process was implemented
and this has improved the customer service capabilities and correspondence. The types of
information that are communicated in this phase include beneficiary condition updates, issues
related to the application forms and drug advance notifications.
The Drug Serv Pharmacies and the Pharmaceutical Division were equipped with servers and
workstations to improve and enhance the infrastructure and capabilities at the locations. This
has resulted in improved processing speeds and administrative capabilities and moving towards
a more integrated system.
Work was carried out on the Wide Area Network (WAN) to include improved redundancy,
improved routing and network monitoring.
The Access Control System was expanded to The Pharmaceutical Division allowing access at
the location to be tracked electronically. The next phase will see the system being implemented
at the Drug Serv locations island wide.
Improvements were carried out in the area of the supply chain with an electronic order log
and gate pass system and the increased adoption of lot and serial number tracking. All orders
received are logged into the system and the relevant inventory offices are notified electronically
for the order to be further processed. After the order has been processed a gate pass can
be printed from the system which allows for better tracking, monitoring and accountability for
the orders dispatched to facilities. Upon receipt of shipments from the suppliers the system will
automatically ask for the lot/serial information which must be entered. Subsequently the lot/serial
information is printed on the invoices sent with the delivery. In addition all Drug Serv locations are
now running the same Pharmacy Management System which has led to improved efficiencies
in prescription processing, management and subsequent reporting. This has also allowed
the administrative support to be improved as the focus is now a single type of application as
opposed to differing versions.
In an ongoing effort to improve the reporting capabilities we have upgraded the current
scheduling system to allow for increased capabilities in the types of reports and delivery methods
to be issued from the system. Reports can now be customized for each situation and individual
being delivered via email and directly into their shared network folder.
The rate of adoption for Electronic Payments to our pharmacy providers in the private sector is
now at 100%. In addition we are reviewing systems in place to implement technologies that will
allow closer monitoring of the provider network.
While 2013/2014 will prove to be even more challenging in the face of several initiatives which
have a heavy technological focus, including the takeover of pharmacy services by the NHF
and the implementation of the GOJ Health Card, the platform laid will provide the framework
to take the initiatives forward and meet the growing needs of the organization.

HUMAN RESOURCES
Staffing

The total staff complement at the end of the reporting period was 247 the same as at March
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2012. Recruitment during this period was centered on filling positions that became vacant during
the year.
A Management Audit was carried out by Trevor Hamilton and Associates to review the
organization structure and pay plan. Recommendations regarding the right-sizing of the
organization were received and are to be implemented.

Summer Work Programme

The NHF’s Annual Summer Work Programme assists Tertiary Level and Secondary School students
to earn an income to help with their academic expenses and to also allow them to gain
valuable work experience. Approximately 114 students benefited under the programme during
this period. Students were placed at NHF locations and partnering Health Institutions across the
four (4) Regional Health Authorities.

Staff Activities/Achievements

The NHF continued its drive to promote healthy lifestyle among staff members by encouraging
participation in several activities throughout the year. A Staff Sports/Welfare Committee was
established with responsibility for the planning and implementation of annual staff activities.
These are the activities that staff participated in throughout the year:
Inter-Company Domino Competition – The NHF team advanced to the 2nd round, after which
they were eliminated.
Business House Five-a-Side Football League – NHF maintained its participation in this annual
event which according to the participants and supporters at the matches “is good for team
spirit and camaraderie”.
JAMFIT Corporate Sports Day – Staff members participated in a Corporate Sports Day organized
by Jamfit on November 10, 2012. Other companies from the Corporate Area also participated
in this event.
NHF Fitness Marathon - Staff competed against other individuals in Emancipation Park during
Physical activity Week.
Everyone’s a Winner 5k Series- Staff participated in this series which took place in March, April
and June 2012.

Staff Sports Day

The NHF annual sports day was held on Saturday, September 15, 2012. Several pre-activities
were held to amass points leading up to the “BIG EVENT.’ A number of interactive activities
were included such as sprint relays, flat races, cheer leading competition and many other
recreational activities to encourage team building. The staff was divided into four teams, Red,
Yellow, Blue and Purple. The Red Team emerged the overall winner. It was a fun-filled day and
the staff left feeling very energized and invigorated as they were able to interact with nature in
the soothing environment of the Dunn’s River Falls.
Emergency Financial Assistance – Two members of staff who were severely affected by the
passage of hurricane Sandy in October 2012, received financial assistance from NHF and the
NHF Staff Charity to help with repairing their homes.
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The Human Resource Department established the NHF E-Census Database under the Public Sector
Transformation Programme. The Employment Census was developed to assist the Government
to create and maintain a comprehensive database of employment and compensation in the
public sector. This will allow the Government to make informed and guided decisions towards
its short to long term objectives.
American Society for Quality (ASQ) - The NHF ISO Lead Auditor obtained professional membership
in the American Society for Quality (ASQ) in June 2012. This Association is a global community
of people passionate about quality who use the tools, their ideas and expertise “to make our
world of work better”.
The Association advances learning, promotes quality improvement, and unites quality
professionals and organizations worldwide. They improve networking, access to information,
solutions, and professional development resources.
Employee Recognition Programme - A programme was implemented to recognize outstanding
performance in the area of Customer Service. Twelve persons received awards during the year.

Training and Staff Development
Staff Training Activities

The NHF established a dedicated unit to deal with all Training and Staff Development activities.
Several staff members throughout the organization participated in internal and external courses,
workshops, seminars and conferences aimed at improving their skills and competencies and for
continuing education. Some of the key areas covered were Quality Management, Corporate
Governance, GOJ Procurement Policies and Procedures, Customer Service, International
Financial Reporting Standards, Forensic Auditing and Contract Procurement Fraud, Minute
Taking and Report Writing, Health Promotion and Cold Chain Management.
The NHF also embarked on a program of Cross Training for all persons in the Customer Care Unit
to ensure smooth business continuity. Everyone in that unit now has a clear understanding of
each other’s role and function.

Work Experience Programme

The NHF continued to fulfill its Corporate Social Responsibility by way of implementing initiatives
that support the practical development of youth. Consequently, several new initiatives were
implemented during this period to provide on-the-job experience for both Tertiary and Secondary
level Students. Two of the key initiatives pursued were the Work Experience Programme for
Pharmacy Students (WEPPS) which saw forty (40) Pharmacy Students receiving placement
during the summer period and nine (9) 4th Form students from the St Andrew Technical High
School receiving placement under the Ministry of Education Work Experience Programme.
Other programmes facilitated were the Pharmacy Technician Internship programme and the
Jamaica Values and Attitudes Project For Tertiary Students (JAMVAT).

Administration

The Administration Department continued to carry out its routine functions of procuring goods
and services for the organization, and ensuring timely maintenance of buildings, equipment
and motor vehicles. The department was also integrally involved in providing support and
transportation to the Public Relations Team for Community Outreach activities held during the
year. Additionally, the Department was involved in major procurement activities which included
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the acquisition of 17 Ambulances for islandwide distribution and 14 pick-up trucks for the Ministry
of Health’s Vector Control Unit.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE MARCH 2013
The financial performance of the National Health Fund was characterized by challenges and
opportunities. Revenue increased by 10% and Surplus declined marginally, but the Capital
Base declined by 2% and Expenses increased by 9%. The growth in Receivables from our
major customer continues to be problematic but strategies have been formulated to ensure
improvement.

Balance Sheet Review
The Consolidated Statement of Financial Position shows Net Asset of $10.57b which is a decrease
of 2% ($193.0m) over the position at March 2012. The 2% percent decrease in the Net Asset
position of the entity was significantly influenced by Capital Reserve of $1.07b being set-off
against receivables from Ministry of Health (MOH) for the supply of pharmaceuticals to the
public health sector. During the year $750.0m was also transferred from the General Fund to
finance Institutional Benefits projects over the period.
In spite of the set-off of $1.07b, Retained Earnings amounted to $4.3b which is an increase of 10%
($379m) when compared to the position at March 2012.
Trust Fund Reserve stood at $5.65b which is an increase of 20% ($953.0m) when compared to the
position at March 2012. The increase in Fund Reserve is substantially due to investment income
earned from Trust Fund investment over the ensuing period. Further, NHF Board of Management
approved the resumption of transfers from General Fund to Trust Fund Reserve effective April
1, 2012; transfer is being made at a rate of 5% of revenue accruing to the organization from
taxation. $746.0m was transferred to the Trust Fund during the year. Transfers to Trust Fund Reserve
were suspended for the period April 1, 2007 to March 31, 2012.
The consolidated balance sheet is reflecting good indicators for liquidity with a current ratio of
4:1 and an acid test ratio of 4.35:1. However, before the set-off 24% of this liquidity is tied up in
receivables and collections are falling drastically below expectations.
Trade receivables have grown by $151.0m or 12% over the balance as at March 2012. This is as a
direct result of the decline in collections from our major customer, the MOH, whose receivables
balance increased by $1.18b YTD March 2013 before the cabinet approved set-off of $1.07b.
Timely and adequate payment from the MOH is essential to the effective operations of the
Pharmaceutical Division.
Receivables from Taxation Revenue is $922.0m as at March 2013; an increase of 25% ($183.0m)
when compared to March 2012; this is due mainly to an increase in the balance receivable from
NIS.
Trade Payables of $1.3b reflects an increase of 64% ($508.0m) over the corresponding period.
68% ($881.0m) represents amount owed to suppliers of pharmaceuticals. The increase is as
a result of increase in purchases from our suppliers to meet the increased demand and the
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deterioration of the exchange rate for the United States Dollar; in spite of these challenges we
endeavor to adhere to agreed credit terms.
Deferred Projects Payable as at March 2013 increased by $506.0m when compared to YTD
March 2012. The increase occurred because the value of projects approved exceeded
payments made to Grantees during the period.

Profit and Loss Analysis
Consolidated Net Operating Income for the year ending March 2013 is $1.87b; this shows a
decline of 1% ($14.0m ) when compared to year ending March 2012. Eighty Percent 80% ($1.5b)
of the actual surplus is attributable to Benefits Division, 21% ($401.0m) to Pharmaceutical, while
Drug Serv had a loss of $37.0m. Revenue from taxation grew by 10% ($469.0m) while expenses
grew commensurately by 9% ($313.0m).
Revenue from Taxation increased by 10% to $4.91b which is $469.0m more than prior year. The
revenue performance of 20% Tobacco Tax and 5% SCT improved by $189.0m and $329.0m
respectively over the prior year. Sale of pharmaceuticals is the main revenue source for the
Pharmaceutical Division and Drug Serv. Pharmaceutical Division generated Sales of $2.6b
which is 17% ($359.0m) more than prior year. Drug Serv generated Sales of $1.7b which is 10%
($117.0m) more than prior year.
Individual Benefit Expense of $3.17b is 72% of total expenses and represents an increase of 10%
over March 2012 but is due solely to increased card utilization and increase in subsidy rates on
NHFCard. The annual enrolment for NHFCard is 28,525 and 10,072 for JADEP.
Salary Costs of $676.0m is 15% of total expenses and has resulted in 30% ($153.0m) increase due
primarily to salary adjustment in January 2012. Staff in the Benefits Division took on additional
duties and responsibilities due to the merger. The realignment of the organizational structure
also resulted in salary adjustment for Pharmaceutical Division and Drug Serv Division staff who
were previously employed on contract.
$741.0m was approved for Institutional Benefits Projects, whereas $920.0m was approved in
the prior year. Institutional Benefits is a programme that provides grant funding to private and
public sector organizations for projects and covers all areas of health care delivery. Institutional
Benefits are provided through two programmes, the Health Promotion and Protection Fund and
the Health Support Fund.
The full details of the financial operations are presented on pages 26 to 58.
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(
(
(

0.98)
12.64
11.66

1,510.92

(

401.19

74.88)

3.36)
71.52)

(
(

(

(

74.07

81.36
247.28

121.68
3,717.62

37.30)

4.97)

4.89)
0.08)

354.96

0.14
280.75

0.05
165.87

3,171.84
77.31
75.29
4.35
37.95
229.20

-

322.63

-

723.35

49.20
-

273.43

1,285.90
(1,012.47)

-

-

-

5,216.88

13.15
3.78

706.42

302.31

2,463.79
(1,757.37)

-

4,914.57

-

-

1,250.78
2,223.12
1,440.67

(

68.19)

9.23)
58.96)

1,874.81

(
(

4,319.86

277.11

3,171.84
77.31
75.29
4.35
38.14
675.82

-

6,262.86

62.35
306.09

979.85

3,749.69
(2,769.84)

4,914.57

1,250.78
2,223.12
1,440.67

Total
$m

560.85

234.15

234.15

-

-

-

-

326.70

326.70

-

-

-

-

Trust
fund
$m

(716.34)

-

-

716.34

-

( 24.51)
-

740.85

-

-

-

-

-

-

Institutional
Benefits fund
$m

(

0.04)

1.31)
1.27

1,324.15

(

3,404.51

122.01

2,880.23
71.63
70.67
4.48
38.74
216.75

-

4,728.70

0.64
282.15

-

-

4,445.91
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Head
Office
$m

(

(
(

531.30

8.40)

4.38)
4.02)
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71.27

0.33
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-

735.16

78.46
21.84
1.78

633.08
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(1,471.97)

-

-

(

(

33.21

6.16)

6.21)
0.05

234.19
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0.21
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-
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-
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-
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Division
Division
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Surplus/(deficit) for the year
being total comprehensive
income (note 15)

Finance (costs)/income:
Interest expense
Foreign exchange gain/(loss)

Expenses:
Institutional benefits
Write-back of
institutional benefits
Individual benefits
Transaction processing costs
Marketing expenses
Enrolment costs
Health promotion activities
Salaries and related benefits
Administration and other
expenses

Total revenue, net of
operating expenses

Other income:
GCT waiver
Other income
Interest income

Pharmaceutical and Drug Serv
Divisions:
Operating revenue
Cost of operating revenue

Remittance from the
Government of Jamaica:
Tobacco tax
National Insurance
Special Consumption Tax

Head
Office
$m

2013
General fund
Pharmaceutical
Drug Serv
Division
Division
$m
$m

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended March 31, 2013

NATIONAL HEALTH FUND

(

(
(

1,888.66

14.60) (

11.90)
2.70) (

3,834.16

245.53

2,880.23
71.63
70.67
4.48
39.28
522.34

-

5,737.42

78.46
66.16
283.93

862.96

3,274.14
(2,411.18)

4,445.91

1,061.61
2,272.24
1,112.06

Total
$m

2012

293.85

3.99)

3.99)

-

-

-

-

297.84

297.84

-

-

-

-

Trust
fund

(879.99)

-

-

879.99

-

( 40.05)
-

920.04

-

-

-

-

-

-

Institutional
Benefits fund
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Statement of Changes in Reserves							
Year ended March 31, 2013
		
Institutional
		
General Trust
Benefits
fund
fund		fund
		
(note 13) (note 9)
$m
$m
$m
Balances as at March 31, 2011

2,900.75

4,401.06

Net comprehensive income for the year

1,888.66

293.85

-

-

-

-

878.00

Net assets transferred through
merger [note 14(a)]
Transfer to Institutional Benefits fund

( 878.00)

Capital
reserve
(note 14)
$m

$m

151.77

-

7,453.58

(879.99)

-

1,302.52

1,067.71

1,067.71

-

-

Balances as at March 31, 2012

3,911.41 4,694.91

149.78 1,067.71

9,823.81

Net comprehensive income for the year
Impact of the National Debt Exchange
2013 [note 5(b)]

1,874.81

560.85

(716.34)

-

1,719.32

( 353.65)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Transfer to Trust fund

( 745.73)

745.73

Transfer to Institutional Benefits fund

( 750.00)

-

750.00

Set-off of Ministry of Health liability
[note 1(c)(iv)]

-

-

-

4,290.49

5,647.84

Balances as at March 31, 2013

(

353.65)

(1,067.71) ( 1,067.71)

183.44

-

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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10,121.77

NATIONAL HEALTH FUND
Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended March 31, 2013
		
		
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Surplus/(deficit) for the year:
General
Trust fund
Institutional Benefit fund
		
Adjustments:
Interest income
Depreciation and amortisation
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
		
Decrease/(increase) in current assets:
Accounts receivable
Taxation recoverable
Inventories		
Increase in current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Institutional benefits
Net cash (used)/provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment
		 and intangible assets		
Other assets transferred from Health Corporation Limited		
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Securities purchased under resale agreements
Investments (net)
Interest received
Long-term receivable (net)
Net cash provided/(used) by investing activities
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net assets transferred from Health Corporation Limited
Loan settled
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2013
$m

2012
$m

1,874.81
560.85

1,888.66
293.85

( 716.34)
1,719.32

( 879.99)
1,302.52

( 632.79)
17.11
0.01)
(
1,103.63

( 581.77)
27.00
747.75

(1,500.79)
4.79
( 177.72)

(1,123.57)
3.00
( 574.32)

507.59
(

687.65

15.80
46.70)

(

21.61)
0.01
( 124.78)
( 507.02)
617.26
164.95
128.81
82.11
683.60
765.71

341.98
82.49

(
(

16.59)
67.08)
(1,395.09)
16.44
580.16
28.10
( 854.06)
1,067.71
( 15.10)
1,052.61
281.04
402.56
683.60

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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NATIONAL HEALTH FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2013
1.

Identification
(a)

National Health Fund (“NHF” or the “Fund”) was established by the National Health Fund Act No.
23/2003 of December 11, 2003 effective April 1, 2003, with a mandate to reduce the burden on
healthcare in Jamaica. On March 1, 2004, the operations of the Fund came under the responsibility of
a Board of Management appointed by the Minister of Health in accordance with the Act.
On March 8, 2011, the NHF Act was amended to allow for a transfer of the assets and liabilities of
Health Corporation Limited (HCL) to the NHF. Consequently, on April 1, 2011, the NHF assumed
responsibility for the procurement, warehousing and distribution of pharmaceuticals and medical
sundries, and the retail pharmacy operations of Drug Serv.
The head office of the Fund is situated at 25 Dominica Drive, Kingston 5, Saint Andrew, Jamaica.
Under section 16 of the NHF Act, the income of the Fund arising under the Act is not liable to income
tax.
Since April 1, 2011, the principal activities of the NHF have been to:

(b)

•

Provide prescribed health benefits to all residents, regardless of age, gender, health or economic
status;

•

Provide greater access to medical treatment and preventative care for specified diseases and
specified medical conditions;

•

Secure improvement in the productivity of residents by reducing time lost on the job that is
attributable to personal and family health care problems;

•

Reduce the Island’s disease burden through health promotion and protection programs;

•

Provide support to health services and promote and encourage the utilization of primary health
care to improve the quality of life of the Island’s population; and

•

Make pharmaceutical and medical supplies accessible and available to government-owned health
facilities.

Operationally, the NHF is expected achieve its mandate through the following programs:
(i)

32

Individual Benefits - pharmaceuticals and supplies are provided to individuals to treat chronic
illnesses under two programs:
i)

NHFcard – provides a drug subsidy for Jamaican residents of all ages, to treat prescribed
chronic conditions; and

ii)

JADEP – provide drugs, free of cost for Jamaican residents 60 years of age and older, to treat
prescribed chronic conditions.
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NATIONAL HEALTH FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
March 31, 2013

1.

Identification (cont’d)
(b)

Cont’d
(ii) Institutional Benefits – Grant funding is provided for health-related projects through two programs:

(c)

i)

Health Promotion and Protection Fund – This program covers a range of health prevention
and promotional activities through private and public sector organizations; and

ii)

Health Support Fund – This program covers infrastructural development and improvement
in the public sector through the purchase of equipment, renovation and refurbishment of
facilities and construction of new facilities.

The Council of Ministers of the Government of Jamaica at its meeting held on March 26, 2013, vide
Cabinet Decision number 12/13, approved, inter alia, the following:
(i)

The creation of a new entity called “National Health Fund Pharmaceuticals”;

(ii) The transfer of the responsibility for the management and delivery of pharmacy services from
the portfolio of the Regional Health Authorities to the portfolio of the “National Health Fund
Pharmaceuticals”, with effect from April 1, 2013;
		
(iii) The reallocation of funds for personal emoluments from the budget of the Regional Health
Authorities to the National Health Fund as at April 1, 2013; and
(iv) The set-off of the liability of the Ministry of Health of $1,071.94m to the National Health Fund
as at April 1, 2011 against the amounts due to Health Corporation Limited’s shareholders on
liquidation of $1,067.71m.
2.

Basis of preparation, statement of compliance and significant accounting policies
(a)

Statement of compliance:
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and their interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).
Certain new, revised and amended standards and interpretations came into effect during the current
financial year. The fund has adopted those which are relevant to its operations, none of which resulted
in any changes in accounting policies or material changes to the content or presentation of amounts or
disclosures in these financial statements.
At the date of approval of the financial statements, there were certain new standards, amendments and
interpretations, which were in issue, but not yet effective, and which the Fund has not early-adopted.
Those which are considered relevant to the Fund are as follows:
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2.

Basis of preparation, statement of compliance and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(a)

34

Statement of compliance (cont’d):
•

IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements (effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after July 1, 2012) is amended to state that an entity present the items of other comprehensive
income that would be reclassified to surplus in the future if certain conditions are met separately
from those that would never be classified to surplus. In addition, it amends the title of the statement
of comprehensive income to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

•

Amendment to IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures (effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013). The standard is amended to help users of financial
statements to understand the actual and potential effects of netting arrangements on the entity’s
financial position. The amendment includes minimum disclosure requirements related to financial
assets and liabilities that are offset in the statement of financial position, or, subject to enforceable
master netting arrangements or similar arrangements.

•

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2010) (effective for annual reporting period beginning on or
after January 1, 2015). The revised IFRS supersedes the previous version of IFRS 9 issued in
2009. The standard retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes two
primary categories for financial assets: amortised and fair value. The revised standard now
includes guidance on classification and measurement of financial liabilities designated as fair
value through profit or loss and incorporates certain existing requirements of IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement on the recognition and derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities.

•

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2013) defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and sets out
disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. It explains how to measure fair value and is
applicable to assets, liabilities and an entity’s own equity instruments that, under other IFRSs, are
required or permitted to be measured at fair value or when disclosure of fair values is provided.
It does not introduce new fair value measurements, nor does it eliminate the practicability
exceptions to fair value measurements that currently exist in certain standards.

•

IAS 19, Employee Benefits, (effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January
1, 2013) has been amended to require all actuarial gains and losses to be recognised immediately
in other comprehensive income. This change will remove the corridor method and eliminate the
ability for entities to recognize all changes in the defined benefit obligation and in plan assets in
profit or loss. It also requires the expected return on plan assets recognized in profit or loss to be
calculated based on the rate used to discount the defined benefit obligation. The amendment also
includes changes to the definitions and disclosure requirements in the current standard.
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2.

Basis of preparation, statement of compliance and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(a)

Statement of compliance (cont’d):
•

Amendment to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - The standard clarifies that an entity
currently has a legal enforceable right to offset if that right is not contingent on a future event;
and enforceable both in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the entity and all the counterparts. In addition, it clarifies that gross settlement
is equivalent to net settlement if, and only if the gross settlement mechanism has features that
eliminate or result in insignificant credit and liquidity risk; and process receivables and payables
in a single settlement process or cycle. The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2014.

•

Improvements to IFRS 2009 - 2011 cycle contains amendments to certain standards and
interpretations and are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.
The main amendments applicable to the group are as follows:
-

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements is amended to clarify that only one comparative
period, which is the preceding period, is required for a complete set of financial statements.
IAS 1 requires the presentation of an opening statement of financial position when an
entity applies an accounting policy retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement or
reclassification. IAS 1 has been amended to clarify that (a) the opening statement of financial
position is required only if a change in accounting policy, a retrospective restatement or
a reclassification has a material effect upon the information in that statement of financial
position; (b) except for the disclosures required under IAS 8, notes related to the opening
statement of financial position are no longer required; and (c) the appropriate date for the
opening statement of financial position is the beginning of the preceding period, rather than
the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented.

-

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment is amended to clarify that the definition of ‘property,
plant and equipment’ in IAS 16 is now considered in determining whether spare parts,
standby equipment and servicing equipment should be accounted for under the standard. If
these items do not meet the definition, then they are accounted for using IAS 2 Inventories.

Management is assessing the impact, if any, of the above amendments, interpretations and new standards
on its future financial statements.
(b)

Basis of preparation:
The financial statements are presented in Jamaica dollars ($), which is the currency in which the Fund
conducts the majority of its operations.
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2.

Basis of preparation, statement of compliance and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(c)

Use of estimates and judgement:
The preparation of the financial statements to conform to IFRS requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, contingent assets and contingent
liabilities at the reporting date and the income and expenses for the year then ended. Actual amounts
could differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS that could have significant effects on the
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next financial
year are discussed below:

		

(i)

Allowance for impairment losses on receivables:
In determining amounts recorded for impairment losses on receivables in the financial statements,
management makes judgements regarding indicators of impairment, that is, whether there are
indicators that suggest there may be a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from
receivables, for example, default and adverse economic conditions. Management also makes
estimates of the likely estimated future cash flows of impaired receivables as well as the timing
of such cash flows. Historical loss experience is applied where indicators of impairment are not
observable on individual significant receivables with similar characteristics, such as credit risks.

(ii) Net realisable value of inventories:
Estimates of net realisable value are based on the most reliable evidence available at the time the
estimates are made of the amount the inventories are expected to realise. These estimates take into
consideration fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to events occurring after the end of the
period to the extent that such events confirm conditions existing at the end of the period.
Estimates of net realisable value also take into consideration the purpose for which the inventory
is held [see note 2(k)].
(iii) Residual value and expected useful life of property, plant and equipment:
The residual value and the expected useful life of an asset are reviewed at least at each financial
year-end, and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for. The
useful life of an asset is defined in terms of the asset’s expected value-in-use to the Fund.
It is reasonably possible, based on existing knowledge, that outcomes within the next financial year
that are different from these assumptions could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount
reflected in the financial statements.
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2.

Basis of preparation, statement of compliance and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(d)

Cash and cash equivalents:

		

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances, including short-term deposits with
maturities ranging between one and three months from the reporting date.

		

Bank overdrafts, repayable on demand and forming an integral part of the Fund’s cash management
activities, are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of
cash flows.

(e)

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:
Items of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation/amortisation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the asset.

(f) Depreciation and amortisation:
		

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are depreciated on a straight-line method, at annual
rates estimated to write down the assets to their expected residual values at the end of their
expected useful lives. The depreciation/amortisation rates are as follows:
Buildings		5%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment		
20%
Computer equipment		
33⅓%
Motor vehicles		
20%
Computer software		
33⅓%

(g)

Foreign currencies:
Transactions in foreign currencies are converted at the rates of exchange ruling at the dates of those
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
translated to Jamaica dollars at the rates of exchange ruling on that date. Gains and losses arising from
fluctuations in exchange rates are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are stated at fair value and are translated to
Jamaica dollars at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the values were determined.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, all foreign currency gains and losses recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income are treated as cash items and included in cash flows from operating
or financing activities along with movements in the principal balances.
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2.

Basis of preparation, statement of compliance and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(h)

Revenue recognition:
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Fund
and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received, excluding discounts, rebates, and other sales taxes or duty. Specific recognition criteria are
as follows:
(i)

Remittances
Revenue is recorded on the accrual basis in respect of remittances collected by the following
entities on behalf of the Fund:
Tax Administration Jamaica
Jamaica Customs
National Insurance Fund		

- Special Consumption Tax (SCT)
- Special Consumption Tax (SCT) and Tobacco Tax
- National Insurance (NIS)

(ii) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is
recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be
estimated reliably, and there is no continuing management involvement with the goods.
(iii) Interest Income
Revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest rate method. Interest income
is included in finance income in the statement of comprehensive income.
(i)

Accounts receivable:
Accounts receivable are stated at cost, less impairment losses.

(j)

Accounts payable:
Trade and other payables, including provisions, are stated at amortised cost.

(k)

Inventories:
Inventories, comprising pharmaceuticals and other medical supplies, are valued at the lower of
weighted average cost and net realisable value. Cost represents invoice cost plus direct inventoryrelated expenses. Net realisable value is the estimate of the selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less selling expenses.
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2.

Basis of preparation, statement of compliance and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(l)

Provisions:
A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Fund has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

(m)

Securities purchased under resale agreements:
Securities purchased under resale agreements (“reverse repurchase agreements’) are transactions
whereby securities are bought with simultaneous agreements for reselling the securities on a specified
date at a specified price. Although the security is delivered to the “buyer” at the time of the transaction,
title is not actually transferred unless the counterparty fails to repurchase the securities on the date
specified.
Reverse repurchase agreements are accounted for as short-term collaterised borrowing.
The difference between the sale and repurchase considerations is recognised on an accrual basis over
the period of the transaction and is included in interest income.

(n)
		

Investments:
Investments for which the Fund has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, are classified as
held-to-maturity, and are measured initially at cost and subsequently at amortised cost.
Investments are recognised/derecognised on the day they are transferred to or by the Fund.

		

(o)

The estimated fair values of the Fixed Rate Accreting Notes (FRANs) [see note 5(b)] are based on the
present value of future cash flows using the discount rate based on market yields on other investments
with similar maturity as the FRANs. The difference between the estimated fair value and the amortised
costs is accreted to the maturity amount over the life of the FRANs and recognised in surplus or deficit
as part of the effective interest income on the FRANs.
Related party balances and transactions:
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial statements
(referred to in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures as the “reporting entity” that is “the Fund”).
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2.

Basis of preparation, statement of compliance and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(o)

Related party balances and transactions (cont’d):
(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Fund if that person:
(i)

has control or joint control over the Fund;

(ii) has significant influence over the Fund; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Fund or of a parent of the Fund.
(b)

An entity is related to the Fund if any of the following conditions applies:
(i)

The entity and the Fund are members of the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member);
(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan established for the benefit of employees of
either the Fund or an entity related to the reporting entity;
(vi) The entity is controlled, or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); or
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between related parties,
regardless of whether a price is charged.
(p)

Impairment:
The carrying amounts of the Fund’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated at each reporting date. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of
an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised
in the Fund’s statement of comprehensive income.
(i)

Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of the Fund’s loans and receivables is calculated as the present value of
expected future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate inherent in the asset.
Receivables with a short duration are not discounted.
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2.

Basis of preparation, statement of compliance and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(p)

Impairment (cont’d):
(i)

Calculation of recoverable amount (cont’d)
The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their net fair value less cost to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely
independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

(ii)

Reversals of impairment
An impairment loss in respect of loans and receivables is reversed if the subsequent increase in
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised.
In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that an asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

(q)
		

3.

Financial instruments:
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one enterprise and
a financial liability or equity instrument of another enterprise. For the purpose of these financial
statements, financial assets have been determined to include cash and cash equivalents, securities
purchased under resale agreements, accounts receivable and investments; financial liabilities comprise
accounts payable and institutional benefits.

Cash and cash equivalents
			

Interest-bearing accounts
Non-interest bearing accounts
				

2013
$m

2012
$m

764.98
0.73
765.71

675.25
8.35
683.60
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4. Securities purchased under resale agreements
			
Trust fund
General fund
				

2013
$m

2012
$m

2,564.58
2,830.94
5,395.52

1,966.03
3,304.71
5,270.74

The fair value of the underlying securities, held in respect of resale agreements, amounted to:
			
Trust fund
General fund
				
5.

2013
$m

2012
$m

2,495.03
3,149.88
5,644.91

2,164.11
3,409.49
5,573.60

Investments

		
2013
2012
		
$m
$m
(a) Held to maturity:
Government of Jamaica bonds
10.5% (2012: 10.5%) Euro Bonds €5.1M (2012: €5.1M)
8.00% - 10.625% (2012: 8.125% - 10.625%)
United States Bonds $11.32M (2012: $7.45M)
10% (2012: 12.25%) Jamaica Bonds

658.27

620.33

1,127.93
1,236.96
3,023.16

670.41
1,579.05
2,869.79

The fair value of the Government of Jamaica bonds is $3,094.98m (2012: $2,826.81m).
The term to maturity of these bonds are analysed as follows:
		
2013
2012
		
$m
$m
From 3 months to 1 year		
Short-term investments
From 1 year to 5 years		
Over 5 years		
Long-term investments		
				

42

658.27
658.27

743.15
743.15

658.27
1,706.62
2,364.89
3,023.16

836.02
1,290.62
2,126.64
2,869.79
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5.

Investments (cont’d)
(b) Impact of National Debt Exchange:
As part of the National Debt Exchange, GOJ mandated the Fund (and all other state-owned/controlled
entities that held GOJ issued notes) (“Old Notes”) to exchange those Old Notes for new notes – Fixed Rate
Accreting Notes (FRANs) – as at February 22, 2013. Old notes with a carrying amount of $1,590.61m
at that date were exchanged for FRANs with a carrying value of $1,236.96m (fair value: $1,236.96m),
resulting in a loss of $353.65m. The terms of the FRANs are as follows:
(i)

A holder of Old Notes was issued with J$80 of initial principal value of FRANs for every J$100
of principal value of Old Notes.

(ii) Interest is payable semi-annually on February 15 and August 15 at a fixed rate of 10% p.a. on the
accreted principal value with the first payment being due on August 15, 2013.
		
(iii) Accretion for the additional J$20 of principal value will commence in August 2015 as follows:
•
•
•

0.5% of $100 every six months from August 15, 2015 until August 15, 2020;
Thereafter, 1.0% of $100 every six months until August 15, 2026; and
Thereafter, 1.5% of $100 every six months until August 15, 2027.

(iv) The FRANs may be redeemed by GOJ on any interest payment date after August 15, 2020. The
value at which the FRAN could be redeemed is not included in the offer document.
(v) In accordance with IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, this exchange
was accounted for as a disposal of the Old Notes and acquisition, at their fair value, of the FRANs.
The effect of this was a loss of J$353.65m.
As permitted by IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, the mandatory exchange of the notes at a
loss was accounted for as “a transaction with owners in their capacity as owners”. Accordingly, the loss
arising on this transaction was recognised directly in equity as a distribution.

6.

Accounts receivable
(a)

Due from the Ministry of Health:

			
Amount receivable in respect of
Pharmaceutical and Drug Serv Divisions		

2013
$m
1,318.30
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6.

Accounts receivable (cont’d)
(a)

Due from the Ministry of Health (cont’d):
The aging of the amount due from the Ministry of Health at the end of the reporting date is as follows:

			
0-30 days
31-60 days
61-90 days
More than 90 days

(b)

2013
$m

2012
$m

254.39
224.93
200.19
638.79
1,318.30

249.65
305.10
107.20
542.80
1,204.75

Other receivables at the end of the reporting date were as follows:

			
Remittance receivable in respect of taxes		
Other trade receivables		
Interest receivable		
Other receivables		
Current maturities of long-term receivable (note 10)
			

2013
$m

2012
$m

921.76
66.68
112.53
56.74
100.00
1,257.71

738.77
29.56
97.63
56.69
100.00
1,022.65

Other trade receivables include $11.98m due from the Ministry of Health Jamaica Second HIV/STI
Project.

7.

Inventories
Inventories comprise the following:

			
Pharmaceuticals and other supplies
Goods in-transit		
Less: allowance for impairment
			

44

2013
$m

2012
$m

708.11
47.92
( 3.99)
752.04

494.16
84.15
( 3.99)
574.32
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8.

Accounts payable
			

Trade payables:
		 Head Office (JADEP Drugs)
		 Pharmaceutical and Drug Serv Divisions
Statutory deductions
Accrued retroactive salary and redundancy payments
Accrued vacation leave
Ministry of Health
Other payables and accrued charges
		

2013
$m

2012
$m

9.43
880.72
30.35
45.24
32.14
151.71
144.47
1,294.06

12.38
614.41
17.19
67.24
27.13
0.11
48.01
786.47

The amount due to the Ministry of Health represents the balance due from the funds remitted by the Ministry
for the procurement of pharmaceutical supplies on behalf of the Second Jamaica HIV/STI Project (see note
22); this amount is included in the cash balances as at the reporting date.
Other payables and accrued charges include amount accrued for pension and other staff related costs.

9.

Institutional benefits
The Institutional Benefits fund was established by a decision of the NHF Board during the financial period
2005/2006. The Fund was established to facilitate the allocation of revenue for the approval of Institutional
Benefits payments [see note 1 (b)(ii)]. Allocation is based on the net revenue available after transfers to the
Trust fund and all operating expenses are charged against revenue.
Institutional benefits are provided through two programmes, the Health Promotion and Protection Fund and
the Health Support Fund [see note 1(b)(ii)].
(i)

Health Promotion and Protection Fund:

		This fund provides financial grants for public and private sector projects in educational and primary
care activities for health promotion and illness prevention.
(ii)

Health Support Fund:

		This fund provides financial grants for infrastructure and other development projects in the public
sector in support of the government’s national health care policy. Pan American Health Organisation
(PAHO) Essential Public Health Functions are also used as an evaluation guide.
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9.

Institutional benefits (cont’d)
As at reporting date, institutional benefits committed and payable were as follows:

		
2013
2012
		
$m
$m
Balance at April 1, 2012
Projects approved during the year
Amounts disbursed during the year
Amounts written back
Balance at March 31, 2103
Less: current portion
		

1,465.72
740.85
( 700.54)
( 24.51)
1,481.52
(1,036.42)
445.10

1,123.74
920.04
( 538.01)
( 40.05)
1,465.72
( 530.15)
935.57

10. Long-term receivable
		
2013
2012
		
$m
$m
Ministry of Finance, Planning and the Public Service
402.37
467.32
Less: current maturities [note (6)(b)]
(100.00)
(100.00)
			
302.37
367.32
This amount is receivable over a period of ten (10) years commencing with $100m in 2007/2008. Subsequent
annual payments are based on the Government of Jamaica’s budgetary provisions. The balance is stated net of
a present value adjustment amounting to $94.44m (2012: $129.49m) reflecting the effect of the “interest-free”
loan given. The discount rate applied is based on the risk-free rate for similar instrument – 10 year bond issued
by the Government of Jamaica. For the year under review this rate was 6.75% (2012: 6.75%).
11.

Property, plant and equipment

		
		
		
Cost:
March 31, 2011
Assets transferred
from Health Corporation Limited
Other additions
March 31, 2012
Additions
Disposals
March 31, 2013

46

Land and
Buildings
$m
50.95
50.95
50.95

Furniture, fixtures
and office equipment
$m

Motor
vehicles
$m

Total
$m

58.24

6.02

64.26

14.25
15.10
87.59
15.22
( 0.08)
102.73

1.72
7.74
5.59
13.33

66.92
15.10
146.28
20.81
( 0.08)
167.01
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11.

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

		
		
		

Land and
Buildings
$m

Depreciation:
March 31, 2011
Charge for the year
March 31, 2012
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposal
March 31, 2013
Net book values:
		 March 31, 2013
		 March 31, 2012

Furniture, fixtures
and office equipment
$m

Motor
vehicles
$m

Total
$m

3.17
3.17
3.17
6.34

46.44
15.55
61.99
10.91
( 0.08)

5.31
1.66
6.97
0.87
-

51.75
20.38
72.13
14.95
( 0.08)

72.82

7.84

87.00

44.61
47.78

29.91
25.60

5.49
0.77

80.01
74.15

Property plant and equipment includes a building which is located on a property owned by a third party.
Discussions have been taking place with the property owner (Factories Corporation Limited, another GOJ
entity) and the Fund has made an offer to purchase the land on which this building is located. However, as at
the reporting date, no formal arrangement had been finalised.
12. Intangible assets
		
Computer software
		$m
At cost:
March 31, 2011
35.21
Assets transferred
from Health Corporation Limited		
0.16
Other additions
1.49
March 31, 2012
36.86
Additions
0.80
March 31, 2013
37.66
Amortisation:
March 31, 2011
27.60
Charge for the year
6.62
March 31, 2012
34.22
Charge for the year
2.16
March 31, 2013
36.38
Net book values:
		 March 31, 2013
		 March 31, 2012
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13.

Trust fund
The Board of Management made a decision to implement a reserve named the Trust fund as part of the Fund’s
25-year strategic plan, 2005-2030. The purpose of the trust fund is to ensure that the Fund will:
(i)

Preserve its long-term viability, sustainability and financial independence; and

(ii)

Meet its mission and the mandate under the NHF Act by increasing subsidies and adding benefits as the
basis of a more comprehensive National Health Insurance Plan.

Effective April 1, 2012, the Board of Management mandated the annual transfer of 5% of the remittance from
the Government of Jamaica [see note 2(h)(i)] from the General fund to the Trust fund.
The Trust fund was originally designed to be financed by an allocation of 40% of revenue, effective January
2005. All returns realised on the Trust fund’s investments are retained in the Trust fund. However, during the
2007/2008 financial period, the Board of Management had authorised that there should be no further transfer
of revenue to this account.
At the reporting date, the Trust fund is represented by amounts included in investments of $3,023.16m
(2012: $2,728.88m) (see note 5), and securities purchased under resale agreements of $2,564.58m (2012:
$1,966.03m) (see note 4).
The movement in the Trust fund during the year was as follows:
			
			
Foreign exchange gain/(loss)
Interest income
		

14.

2012
$m

234.15
326.70
560.85

( 3.99)
297.84
293.85

Capital reserve
(a)

48

2013
$m

This comprises the net surplus of the book value of assets over liabilities arising on the transfer of the
operations of Health Corporation Limited (HCL) to National Health Fund (see note 1).
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14.

Capital reserve (cont’d)
(a)

(Cont’d)
The estimated fair value of the net assets transferred from Health Corporation Limited was as follows:
$m
Identifiable assets acquired:

Cash and cash equivalents
Due from the Ministry of Health
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Identifiable intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
			

73.72
1,071.94
112.49
529.61
0.16
66.92
1,854.84

Liabilities assumed:
Loan
Taxation payable
Trade and other payables
Net assets transferred from Health Corporation Limited
(b)

15.

16.

( 15.10)
( 65.90)
( 706.13)
1,067.71

Effective March 26, 2013, a set-off of the amounts due from the Ministry of Health of $1,071.94m
against the amount due to the shareholders of Health Corporation Limited on liquidation [note 1(c)
(iv)] was approved vide Cabinet Decision number 12/13.

General fund
The surplus for the year is stated after charging:
			
			

2013
$m

2012
$m

Depreciation and amortisation
Board fees
Compensation for key management (short-term benefits)

17.11
1.10
81.29

27.00
0.48
73.60

Employee numbers and costs
As at March 31, 2013, the Fund’s employees aggregated 247 persons (2012: 247 persons).
The payroll costs for these persons inclusive of key management were as follows:
			
			
Salaries
Statutory deductions		
Other payroll costs		
		

2013
$m

2012
$m

585.42
36.28
54.12
675.82

449.92
24.76
47.66
522.34
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17.

Employee benefits
The Board of Management operates a contributory pension scheme which became effective November 1,
2011, for all employees who have satisfied certain minimum service requirements. The scheme is a defined
contribution plan and is administered by its Trustees.
Contributions made during the year amounted to $36.79m (2012: $5.36m).

18.

Related party balances and transactions
The statement of financial position includes balances arising in the normal course of business, with related
parties as follows:
2013
2012
				
			
$m
$m
Investments in GOJ securities
Amount due from the Ministry of Health
Remittance receivable in respect of share of various taxes
from Tax Administration Jamaica, Jamaica Customs and
National Insurance Fund
Accounts payable (statutory deductions)
Institutional benefits payable to GOJ projects
Long-term receivable (see note 10)		
Amount due to Ministry of Health (see note 8)		

3,023.16
1,318.30

2,869.79
1,204.75

921.76
30.35
1,430.43
402.37
151.71

738.77
17.19
1,436.23
467.32
0.11

The statement of comprehensive income includes the income earned from, and expenses incurred in
transactions with related parties, in the ordinary course of business as follows:
			
			
Remittances in respect of share of various taxes
Operating revenue - Pharmaceutical Division		
		
- Drug Serv Division		
Ministry of Health - Project management fees		
Interest income on investments in GOJ securities		
Institutional benefits expensed relating to various GOJ projects

19.

2013
$m
4,914.57
2,463.79
984.51
12.31
450.59
( 660.81)

2012
$m
4,445.91
2,096.52
836.39
17.50
492.04
( 903.24)

Financial risk management
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enterprise and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another enterprise.

50

N AT I O N A L H E A LT H F U N D A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 012 - 2 013

NATIONAL HEALTH FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
March 31, 2013

19.

Financial risk management (cont’d)
(a)

Introduction and overview:
The Fund has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
•
•
•

Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risks

The Board of Management of the Fund, subject to provision of the National Health Fund Act has the
responsibility to establish a risk management framework for the general administration of the affairs
of the Fund. The Board of Management is appointed by the Minister of Health with directives for the
establishment of this framework.
Risk management policies and procedures are established to identify, evaluate and analyse the risks
faced by the Fund, to set appropriate controls, and to monitor adherence to the established standards.
The risk management policies may be affected by public policies, local laws and regulations and the
Government of Jamaica’s socio-economic policies in specified areas. The Board of Management has the
responsibility for establishing a risk management framework which incorporates these other policies.
The Board of Management also establishes policies to address market and liquidity risks on an ongoing
basis which are also monitored and reviewed regularly to reflect changes in current market conditions.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect relevant changes in the local
statutory regulations, government policies and the social and economic environment. The Fund, through
its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive
control environment, in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.
(b)

Credit risk:
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Fund if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meets its contractual obligations and causes the other party to incur a financial loss.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are placed with approved financial institutions for short-term periods and
management believes that these institutions have a minimal risk of default.
Securities purchased under resale agreements
Securities purchased under resale agreements are collateralized by Government of Jamaica securities.
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19.

Financial risk management (cont’d)
(b)

Credit risk (cont’d):
Investments
Investments are allowed primarily in secure liquid instruments and with counterparties that the Board of
Management believes do not offer any significant credit risk and in Government of Jamaica securities.
The Board of Management manages credit risk by having an investment policy which includes written
authority levels and prior approval by the Board of Management of significant investment transactions.
Based on their assessment, the Board of Management does not expect any counterparties to fail to meet
their obligations.
There are no off-balance sheet investments and, therefore, the maximum exposure to credit risk, i.e.,
the maximum amount of loss that the Fund would suffer were all counter parties to default at once, is
represented by the total carrying amount of financial assets.
Revenue receivable
Amounts due from contributing Government of Jamaica departments are followed up for collection.
Approximately 90% (2012: 90%) of sales is generated from Government of Jamaica’s (GOJ’s) health
facilities, which represents approximately 55% (2012: 76%) of the trade receivable balance as at the
end of the reporting period. Receivables due from the GOJ’s health facilities are not expected to become
uncollectible within the next twelve (12) months from the end of the reporting period.
Amount due from the Ministry of Health
The Ministry continues to make payments towards settling all outstanding amounts subject to the
constraints of budgetary allocations.
Other receivables
The other concentration of the Fund’s credit risk is with non-government trade receivables, which is
mitigated by regular credit evaluation of those customers with the result that the Fund’s exposure to bad
debts is not considered to be significant at the end of the reporting period.
There was no impairment allowance in the Funds’ financial assets as management has not identified any
indicators of impairment as at the end of the reporting period.
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19.

Financial risk management (cont’d)
(c)

Liquidity risk:
Liquidity risk, also referred to as funding risk, is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in raising
funds to meet its commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an
inability to sell a financial asset quickly at, or close to, its fair value. Prudent liquidity risk management
implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, and the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed facilities. Due to the nature of the business, management aims
at maintaining flexibility in funding by following up on revenue and accounts receivable and by
maintaining marketable securities and other financial instruments.
An analysis of the contractual undiscounted cash flows of the Fund’s financial liabilities is presented
below. The analysis provided is by estimating the timing of the amounts recognised in the statement
of financial position.

		
March 31, 2013
						
Total
		
Within		
Three to
Over 12
cash
		
3 months 12 months		months		 outflow
		
$m
$m
$m		
$m

Carrying
amount
$m

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Institutional benefits
		

1,294.06
- 		1,036.42
1,294.06		
1,036.42

445.10
445.10

1,294.06
1,481.52
2,775.58

1,294.06
1,481.52
2,775.58

		
March 31, 2012
						
Total
		
Within		
Three to
Over 12
cash
		
3 months 12 months months
outflow
$m
$m
		
$m		
$m

Carrying
amount
$m

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Institutional benefits
		

786.47
786.47

530.15
530.15

935.57
935.57

786.47
1,465.72
2,252.19
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19.

Financial risk management (cont’d)
(d)

Market risks:
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange and interest rates, will
affect the Fund’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market
risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while
optimising the return on risk. Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis.
(i)

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the market value of, or the cash flows from, financial
instruments, will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
Foreign currency risk arises primarily on transactions that are denominated in a currency other
than the Jamaica dollar. Such exposures comprise the monetary assets and liabilities of the Fund
that are not denominated in the functional currency of the Fund.
The principal foreign currency risks of the Fund are denominated in United States dollars (US$).
The Fund manages foreign exchange exposure by maintaining adequate liquid resources in
intervening currencies and by managing the timing of payments of foreign currency liabilities.

The principal foreign currency risk of the Fund, represented by balance in the respective currencies
is as follows:
2013
2012
		
US$ m
EUR (€) m
US$ m
EUR (€) m
Cash and cash equivalents
2.15
Investments		
15.26
Accounts payable		
( 7.90)
		
9.51

5.10
5.10

0.50
15.42
( 5.79)
10.13

- 		
5.10
- 		
5.10

The Bank of Jamaica exchange rates, in terms of Jamaica dollars, were as follows:
				

US$		
EUR(€)

March 31, 2013:
March 31, 2012:
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97.94		
86.93		
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19.

Financial risk management (cont’d)
(d)

Market risks (cont’d):
(i)

Foreign currency risk (cont’d)
Sensitivity analysis:
A 1% (2012: 1%) strengthening of the United States dollar and the Euro dollar against the Jamaica
dollar would have decreased the surplus/(deficit) for the year by $15.68m (2012: $14.73m). A
10% (2012: 1%) weakening of these currencies at March 31, 2013, would have had the increased
the surplus/(deficit) by $156.81. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant.
The analysis is done on the same basis as in 2012.

(ii)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in future cash flows or from fair value
movements of financial instruments due to changes in market interest rates.

At the reporting date, the interest profile of the Fund’s interest bearing financial instruments was:
						
Carrying amount
			
2013
2012
			
$m
$m
Fixed rate instruments:		
Financial assets				
6,446.34
3,077.75
			
		 Variable rate instruments:
Financial assets
1,979.33
5,069.38
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Fund does not account for any fixed rate financial assets at fair value through the surplus/
deficit. Therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect the statement
of comprehensive income.
		

Sensitivity analysis:
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments:

			
			
1% (2012: 1%) increase
1% (2012: 1%) decrease

Increase/(decrease)
in surplus
2013
2012
$m
$m
19.79
(19.79)

50.69
(50.69)

The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular, foreign currency rates, remain constant.
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20.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. A market price, where an active market (such as a recognised
stock exchange) exists, is the best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument. Market prices are not
available for some of the financial assets and liabilities of the Fund. Fair values disclosed in the financial
statements, therefore, may not necessarily be indicative of the amounts that the company would realise in a
current market exchange.
The fair value of investments is as disclosed in note 5(a).
The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, securities purchased under resale agreements, accounts receivables
accounts payable and current value of institutional benefits payable is assumed to approximate carrying value
due to their short-term nature and/or ability to effect offset of amounts.
The fair value of long-term institutional benefits payable is assumed to approximate to carrying value as no
loss on realisation on discount on settlement is anticipated.

21.

Commitments under operating leases
At March 31, 2013, gross lease rentals payable under the terms of an operating lease amounted to $42.04m
(2012: $11.13m). Of this amount, $31.48m (2012: $5.30m) is payable within twelve months.

22.

Ministry of Health – Jamaica Second HIV/STI Project
Health Corporation Limited had a contractual arrangement with the Ministry of Health (MOH) (acting through
the Project Coordination Unit of the Jamaica Second HIV/STI Project), for the procurement, transportation
and storage of drugs and other medical supplies. This contractual arrangement was assumed by the National
Health Fund upon the transfer of assets and liabilities and operations of Health Corporation Limited (see note
14). The agreement was scheduled to continue for the duration of the project to November 30, 2012, or as
extended based on further arrangements.
The project was not yet closed at the reporting date.
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Administration and other expenses
Year ended March 31, 2013
			
		
		

Head
Office
$m

Depreciation and amortisation
Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Rental of building and equipment
Maintenance
Insurance
Legal and professional fees
Fines and penalties
Board meeting expenses
Miscellaneous
Pharmacy upgrade
Motor vehicle expenses
Repairs and maintenance - equipment,
fixtures and furniture
Other administrative costs
Postage and courier
Email communication and fibre optic
system
Intranet setup and maintenance
Printing, stationery and office supplies
Temporary staff salary
Audit fees
Other accounting fees
Summer employment programme
Staff welfare
Staff training
Security
Dues, subscription and donations
Board fees
Merger expense
Utilities
Local and overseas travel and
accommodation
Cleaning and sanitation
Telephone and fax
ICT hot site back up
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Pharmaceutical
Division
$m

Drug Serv
Division
$m

2013
$m

2012
$m

7.93

4.91

4.27

17.11

27.00

0.01)
9.18
21.77
0.80
16.81
5.11
5.60
1.78

10.51
4.82
0.46
1.53
0.10
0.21

5.73
1.65
1.34
0.21
( 0.01)
-

0.01)
25.42
23.42
6.96
17.48
1.53
5.11
0.09
5.60
1.99

15.93
17.64
7.69
11.00
1.82
-

3.71
1.97
0.58

6.56
0.17
0.34

5.27
0.41
0.78

15.54
2.55
1.70

18.82
3.52
1.79

2.54
6.14
8.55
3.00
7.91
1.73
4.59
0.79
1.10
-

2.35
2.18
2.42
2.25
0.93
14.20
0.07
21.21

1.65
22.37
1.19
2.11
1.51
14.43
0.23
5.90

2.54
6.14
12.55
24.55
6.61
7.91
6.09
7.03
29.49
0.30
1.10
27.11

2.33
7.01
13.87
5.80
6.36
11.32
5.35
11.89
25.15
0.30
0.48
1.85
25.40

8.36
1.74
121.68

1.44
1.00
3.63
81.36

1.78
1.04
2.21
74.07

3.22
2.04
14.20
1.74
277.11

4.34
2.81
12.91
3.15
245.53

(

(
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2012/2013
EMOLUMENT PACKAGE FOR EXECUTIVES
(EXPRESSED IN JAMAICAN DOLLARS)
STANDARDIZED REPORTING FOR DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES FOR
INCLUSION IN ANNUAL REPORTS
DIRECTORS COMPENSATION 2012/2013

Position of Director

Fees
($)

Board Members (all)

1,103,000.00

Committee (7)

1,691,740.00

Motor Vehicle
Upkeep/Travelling
or
Value of Assignment
of Motor Vehicle
($)

Honoraria
($)

All Other
Compensation
including Non-Cash
Benefits as applicable
($)

Total
($)

1,103,000.00
512,329.01

2,204,069.01

Meeting Cost

1,108,686.13

1,116,036.13

Board Retreat

1,685,880.00

1,793,880.00

Other

Notes
1. Where a non-cash benefit is received (e.g. government housing), the value of that
benefit shall be quantified and stated in the appropriate column above.
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STANDARDIZED REPORTING FOR DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES FOR
INCLUSION IN ANNUAL REPORTS
SENIOR EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 2012/2013

CEO

2012/2013 9,365,207.12 918,059.60

1,134,468.10

Other
Pension Allowances**
or
(Pay in lieu of
Non-Cash
Other
Leave &
Total
Benefits
Retirement Retro Salary
($)
($)
Benefits
& Lunch
($)
Allowance)
($)
370,000.00 640,941.08
12,428,675.90

SNR VP
FINANCE
SNR VP MIS

2012/2013 6,342,857.04 926,948.31

975,720.00

634,285.70

501,168.16

9,380,979.21

2012/2013 6,342,857.04 931,279.84

975,720.00

634,285.70

318,048.02

9,202,190.60

SNR VP
OPERATIONS
VP
OPERATIONS
Chief Internal
Audit
VP
Pharmaceutical

2012/2013 6,439,285.62 931,279.84

975,720.00

634,285.70

455,874.30

9,436,445.46

2012/2013 4,736,951.04 678,891.42

975,720.00

473,695.10

305,075.50

7,170,333.06

2012/2013 4,432,962.96

651,004.55

975,720.00

221,648.15

312,995.64

6,594,331.30

2012/2013 5,432,993.04

804,514.53

975,720.00

543,299.30

411,549.52

8,168,076.39

VP HR

2012/2013 4,266,143.52

819,224.16

975,720.00

-

438,823.18

6,499,910.86

VP Drug Serv

2012/2013 5,084,972.04

784,131.65

975,720.00

508,497.20

330,312.30

7,683,633.19

Position of
Senior
Executive

Year

Salary
($)

Travelling
Allowance
Gratuity &
or
Performance
Value of
Incentive,
Assignment of
($)
Motor Vehicle
($)

** Other Allowances represents pay in lieu of leave earned and retro salaries for 2009/2011
period

Notes
1. Where contractual obligations and allowances are stated in a foreign currency,
the sum in that stated currency must be clearly provided and not the Jamaican
equivalent.
2. Other Allowances (including laundry, entertainment, housing, utility, etc.)
3. Where a non-cash benefit is received (e.g. government housing), the value of that
benefit shall be quantified and stated in the appropriate column above.
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Board
of Management
committees
Board
of Management Sub
Sub-committees
Operations Committee
Dr. Thelma Nelson – Chairperson
Mr. Cordinal Beckford
Mrs. Claudia Ferguson
Ms. Sophia Frazer-Binns
Mr. Desmond Munroe
Mr. Sterling B. Soares – Ex-Officio (Board Chairman)

Medical Review Committee
Dr. Lucien Jones - Chairperson
Dr. Thelma Nelson
Dr. Arlene Thorbourne – co-opted committee member
Mr. Sterling B. Soares – Ex-Officio (Board Chairman)

Finance, Investment and ICT Committee
Mr. Gary Francis - Chairperson
Mrs. Claudia Ferguson
Mr. Sterling B. Soares – Ex-Officio (Board Chairman)
Mr. Robert Cranston - Ex-Officio

Audit Committee
Ms. Sophia Frazer-Binns - Chairperson
Mr. Cordinal Beckford
Mr. Dennis Lawrence - co-opted committee member
Mr. Sterling B. Soares – Ex-Officio (Board Chairman)

Human Resources and Public Information Committee
Mr. Desmond Munroe – Chairperson
Mrs. Claudia Ferguson
Dr. Thelma Nelson
Ms. Sophia Frazer-Binns
Mr. Robert Gregory – co-opted committee member
Mr. Emile Spence – co-opted committee member
Mr. Sterling B. Soares – Ex-Officio (Board Chairman)
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Highlights
Highlights

The residents of St. Mary enjoying their day of free health
checks and wholesome family entertainment at the NHF
Health Fair.

Jonelle Esty, Promotion Agent, NHF registering a resident at a
Community Health Day held in Kentish, Gordon Hill,
St. Catherine.

Patrons taking a keen interest in a physical activity session at
the Caribbean Wellness Day 2013 celebration.

Sophia Mitchell, Health Promotions Coordinator, NHF presents
86 year old Roy Thomas with his trophy won in one of the Best
Dressed Everyone’s A Winner 5K races.

NHF team members observing “Pink Day”, as the fight against Breast Cancer continues.
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A finalist in the 2012 Hula Hoop Competition exhibiting his
hula hooping skills.

Certificate and trophy in hand, some of the winners in the
2012 Hula Hoop Competition.

Team NHF getting ready to participate in the annual Sigma 5K.

Sharing pleasantries with patients at the newly
refurbished Port Morant Health centre, from right Hon.
Dr. Fenton Ferguson, Minister of Health, Dr. D’ Oyen
Smith, Parish Manager and CEO, Princess Margaret
Hospital, and Lyttleton Shirley, Chairperson, SERHA.

Hon. Dr. Fenton Ferguson, Minister of Health presenting keys to one of 17 ambulances purchased by the
NHF, to Kaye Bell, Chairperson SRHA. The ambulances were distributed across the islands four health
regions. Looking on are Sterling Soares, Chairman NHF and Leon Gordon, Chairman NERHA.
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Corporate
CorporateInformation
Information
The National Health Fund of Jamaica is a statutory organisation created by the
National Health Fund Act (2003)
6th Floor, The Towers, 25 Dominica Drive, Kingston 5, St. Andrew, 		
HEAD OFFICE:
			Jamaica
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TELEPHONE: 		
			
			

(876)906-1106
1-888-DIAL NHF (342-5643)
1-888-GO JADEP (465-2337)

FACSIMILE: 		

(876)906-1105

WEBSITE: 		

www.nhf.org.jm

FACEBOOK:

www.facebook.com/nhfjamaica

TWITTER: 		

www.twitter.com/nhfjamaica

YOUTUBE: 		

www.youtube.com/nhfjamaica

BANKS: 		
			

RBC Royal Bank (Jamaica) Limited
National Commercial Bank Jamaica Limited

AUDITOR:		

KPMG
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